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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

SECURITIESANDEXCHANGE COMMISSION, - HInGE E"ﬂ PLAN

Plaintiff, o D CIVIL ACTION

LUMENIS, LTD., SAGI A. GENGER and P 6 RJ : v
KEVIN MORANO . _

JURY TRIAL
DEMANDED

Defendants.

PR 26 2006

COMPLAINT

~ Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) all

SUMMARY

1. From at least late 2001 through early 2003_ (the “Relevémt Period”), Lumenis Ltd.
(“Lumenis™), van Israeli corporation with executi'\;e offices in New York and whose stock is
pﬁblicly traded in the United States, acting through senior ofﬁcefs, ‘eng'aged in a fraudulent
- scheme to inﬂate revenues and misrepresent other important financial metrics so as to deceive
investors as to the company"s true financial coﬁdition. The Sch_em_e was orchestrated by -
Lumenis’ fomIer chi¢f operating officer, Sagi Genger (“Genger”™), and its former chief financial
officer, Kevin Morano (“Moranp”). The scheme iﬁvolved the improper recognition of a series of
sales transactions fhat resulted in Lumenis’ publication of matérially false and misleading
* financial statements in six consecutive financial reporting periods, starting with those for the year
ending Decerﬁber' 31,2001. Certain of the fransactions enébled Lumenis to meet previousiy

announced quarterly revenue targets in two quarters and others helped to lessen the s;hortfalI in




N
S

~ certain qﬁarters when Lumenis ruissed its r)redicted'revenue figures. The improper sales
transactions alsb materialiy lessened the severity of losses reported by the compuny during the
| Relevant Peﬂed, both on 4 quurterly an_d yeurly basis. |
‘ | 2. Genger and Morano worked in co'neert to _further the fraudulent scheme at
VLUmeni_s. Genger irlduceddistribu‘rors and otlrer customers to make excessive end-of the quarter
produ_ct purchases Whi_l_e knowingly. and/or recldessly disregarding the fact that transactions did
| not qualify for. receguition as preper sales. Morano allowed Lumenis to record revenué and
profits from the improper transactions while knowingly and/or recklessly disregarding' the
v-ario'usv conditious that shouid lrave precluded recognition of the sales. F or all of the rransactions'
. at .issue,rLumenis recognized revenue in a manner that departed from gerlerally accepted
accounting lprinciples (“(_iAA_P”).
3. By engaging in the transactions and practices alleged in this Complaint:
a. ~ Lumenis violated Section 17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities
 Ac ) [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)]; and Sections 10(b), 13(a), 13(b)(2)(A) and 13(b)(2)(B) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“E)rchange Act”) and Rules 10b-5, 12b-20, 13a-1, 13a-11, and
13a-13 thereunder [15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b), 78m(a), 78m(b)(2)(A), 78m(b)(2)(B) and 17 C.F.R. §§
240.105-5, _240.12b-26, 240.13a-1, 240.13a-11 and 240.13a-'13];. |
| b. Geuger violated Section 17(a) of the Securities Act {15 US.C. § 77q(a)];
Sections 10(b) andv13(b)(5) of the Exchange Act and Rules 10b-5, 13b2-1 and 13b2-2 thereunder
[15U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) and 78m(b)(5) and 17 C.F.R. §§ 240.10b-5, 240.13b2-1 and240.13b2-2];
and aided and abetted violations of Sections 10(b), 13(a), 13(b)(2)(A) and 13(b)(2)(B) of the

Exehange Act and Rules 10b-5,12b-20, 13a-1, 13a-11, and 13a-13 thereunder [15U.8.C. §§
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78j(b), 78m(a), 78m(b)(2)(A), 78m(b)(2)(B) and‘17‘C.F R §‘§ 240.10b-5, 240.12b-20, 240.13a-1,.
| 240.13a-11 and 240.13a-13]; and | |

| | c.. - Morarip violated 'Sectiqn 17-(a) of the Securities Act [15US.C. § 77q(a)].;
Sections 10(b) and 13(b)(5) of the Exchange Act ;ﬁd Rules 10b-5, 13a-14, 13b2-1 and 13b2-2
théreunder [15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) and 78m(b)(5) and 17 C.F.R. §§ 240.10b-5, 240.13a-14,
- 240.13b2-1 and 240.13b2-2]; and aided and abettedv \}iolations of Sections 10(b), 13(a), ,
13(b)(2)(A) and 13(b)(2)(B) oftile Exchange Act and Rules 10ba5,12b-20; 13a-1, 13a-11, and
+ 13a-13 thereunder [15 U.S-‘.C. §8 785(b), 78m(a), 78m(b)(2)(A), 78m(b)(2)(B) and 17 CFR §§
+240.10b-5, 240.12b-20, 240;13a-1, 240.13a—11 and 240; 13a—‘13];

4. Accordingly, the Commiséioﬁ seéi(s entry of a permanent injunction against each

Defendant prohibiting further violations of the federal securities laws. With respect to
Defendants Genger. and Morano, the Commission also seeks civil monetary penaities and a

‘permanent bar prohibiting each from serving as an officer or director of a public company.

JURISDICTION
5. This Court has jurisdictién over this action pursuant to Section 22(a) of the
Secuﬁtigs Act[15 U.S.C. § 77v(a)] and Sections 21 and 27 of the Exéhange Act[15US.C. §§
780 and 78aal. | |
6. The Commission brings this action pursuant to the authority conferred upon it by
Sections 20(5) and (e) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(b) and (¢)] and Sections 21(&) and
- (e) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 78u(d) and (¢)].

T In connection with the conduct alleged herein, Defendants, directly and indirectly,



made use of the means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce, of the mails, the facilities of
“national securities exchanges, and/or of the means and instruments of transportation or
communication in interstate commerce,

DEFENDANTS

8 Lumenis, an Israeli corporation with its headquarters in Yokneam, Israel and
exeéuﬁ\}e Qfﬁces in _Néw York, New York, designs and manuf_a'ctureé laser and light based
systems for aesthetic, surgical and other applications. Lumenis distributes its products in the
United Stﬁtes and elsewhere. During the Relevant Peﬁod, Lumenis’ main corporate ofﬁces,
including those of Genger and Morano, were located in New York, New York. Muph of the
illegal conduct described hercin, including the issuénce of false and misleading publicr statements
by the Defendants, occurred in Lumenis’ New York office. Lumenis’ stock is registered with the .
Commission pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act and was traded on Nasdaq National
Markets System unﬁl December 2003, when Nasdaq delisted Lumenis for its failure to comply
with Commis-sironregl.llations requiring audited financial statements. Lumenis stock currently is
quéted on the Pink Sheets.

9. sagi A. Genger, age 34, of New‘ York, New York, is the former chief operating
officer (“COQO”) of Lumenis. He became L@eMs’ chicf financial officer (“CFO”) in November
1999, a positiqn he maintained through July 2001, when he became its COO. ,Lumeﬁis
eliminated the position of COO in July 2003, and Geriger left the company’s employ at that time. .
Genger is a citizen of both Israel and the United States. |

10.  Kevin Morano, age 52, of Pehnington, New Jersey, is the former CFO and



executive vice president of Lumenis and is currently seﬁior vice president for marketing and
businessb(rlevelopment. of the combany. Morano became the CFO iﬁ late February 2002 and
- remained in that pésition until approximately May 2004. Morano is a certified public accountant
whose license, issued by the state of NeW Jersey, has been ihéctive‘ since 1992.

| | ‘ 7. THE SCHEME

I. - The Eclipse Transactions

11.. *As part of the Vschbeme to defraud investors, Lumerﬁs engaged in at least three
transfactions with Eclipse Medical, Ltd. (“Eclipse”) in Tate 2001 and 2002 that resulted 1n the
bublication of matérially faise and misleading ﬁnéncial information. All three transactions
directly invol§ed Genger, and two involved Morano.

12. - During the Relevant Period, Luménis sqld its products in thé United States
directly to end users or to distﬁbutors. Ecﬁpse was Lumenis’ largest distributor in the United
States during th¢ Relevant Period. Eclipse gnd Lumenis began doing business in at least 1996.
Sales of Luménié products during the Relevant Periéd made up the overwhelming majority of
Eclipse’s sales.

A. The _First Eclipse Transaction: $1 Million
Fraudulent} Sale In Late 2001 and Early 2002

13.  Throughout 1998, 1999 and 2000, Eclipse amassed a large debt to Lumenis. ‘By |
the beginnihg of 2001, Eclipse owed Luménjs more than $4.5 million, and 'in excess of $3:5
million of thése payables were overdue. In February 2001, Lumenis began requiring Eclipse to
pay for its orders Vié -credit card as a way to ensure that it paid down its overdue debt. ‘In

connection with the new distribution agreement, which the parties entered into “as of”



December 31,2001, Lumenis forgave the ent_ire outstanding payable balance that Eclipse owed it
“asof that time — a total of over $3.6 million.
| 14.  The new distribution agreement also proVided_ Lumenis with the right ‘te.acquire
' ‘,Eclipse’s distribution eperations after several years. As part of the entrance into the new
| distribution agreement, Lumenis required Eclipse. to place an order for apprOXimately $1 million
~ of Lumenis products.v At the same time, Lu'menisl also agree(;.to “loan” Eclipse $1.25 millibh, $1
million of which would enable Eclipse to purchase the $1 million in products. The transaction
| _ 'also.contemplated that the lo}anr could be addressed as part of Lumenis’ future acciuisition of
Eclipse’s distributiqn business. In essence, Lumenis financed Eelipse’s puIchase of the products
with no payment of prihcipal due for several years, and provided an option whereby the
outstandirig loan would be credited as part of the purchase price for Eclipse’s distribution
bttsiness.

15. | Genger was a principal negotiator for Lumenis during the,negotiatiens between
Lumenie and Eclipse that gave rise to the new distribution agreemer_ltand the associated deal
described above. Genger was etware that the loatl fro'rtl Lumenis to Eclipse would be used By
Eclipse to purchase Lumenis products. Upon learning abéut the possible linkage between the

~loan and the product purchase, Lumenis’ outside auditor told Lumenis, including Genger, that
there could be revenue recognition is.sues posed by the structure (i.e., that recognition of the $1

“million in products may be improper). Subsequent to being informed of the outside auditor’s

| concerns, Lumenis altered the draft of the new distribution agreement documents to remove any

language linking the loan to the product purchase. Additionally, Lumenis and Genger also stated



falsely tﬂereaﬂer that the entire ‘$1‘.25 million loan was for Eclipsé to pay tax liaBilities, when
they. knew that $’1 _ mil-lidn of it was to tied to the product purchase.

16. Under GAAP, the loan, produgt purchase, and newjdist’ribution agréement sh_ould_
have been evaluated_togethér as one transaction. GAAP also requires that revenue should not be
recognized until it is realized or reaiiz’able and earned. According'to SEC Staff Aécounting
Bulletin 101 (“SAB 101”), this standard is gehcrally satisfied Wﬁen, among other things,

: collectability of the funds vis_rea_son’ably assured. Here, collectabiﬁty was not reasonably ass_uréd
beéause; ¢)) Eclipse’s $1 mﬂlion order of Lumenis products was in effect paid for by Luméhis;
aﬁd (2), Eclipse lacked an ability or willingness td pay for the Lumenis goods absent Lumenis’

- funding. Moreover, the transaction lacked economic substance in that the parties Contemplated.

that the $1 million loan would possibly never be paid back but fathér would be addressed as part

of Lumenis’ far-off purchase of Eclipse’s distributipn Business by Lumenis. The revenue and
profits associated with the transaction_should have been deferred, at least until the loan was paid
off, and then evaluated as part of Lumenis’ future purchase of Eclipse’s distribution business.

'Luﬁlenis, hdwever, treated the prodlict purchase as a separate ﬁansaction and recognized the

sales in the quarters in which the products were shipped — approximately $824,000 in the fourth

_7 quarter of fiscal year 2001 ending Décémber 31, 2001 and approximately $204,000 in its first

- fiscal quarter of fiscal year 2002 ending March 31, 2002. Genger, based on his experience at

Lumenis, as well as his intéractions with the outside auditofs, knew or recklessly disregarded the

fact that it was improper to recognize the sales as was done and that it would bel misleading to

investors to report it as such.



' 17.‘ 'fhe rcv:(-:ognition'of the revenue and prOﬁ’;s associated with these sales fesﬁlted in
Lumenis ﬁling a fals‘e. and rhisleading Fo‘r}m_IO-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 on April
17, 2002, and a falsé and misleading 'FOI'D; 10-Q for the quarter end¢d March 31, 2002 (the ﬁrsf

- quarter of 2002) on May 15, 2002. |

| 18.  The improper récognition of the $1 million sales transactioﬁ described above
resulted in the public diséemination of false and misleading financial information in Commission
ﬁlings and 6thef communications, including a pre'ss relgase and earnings call on February >28‘,

| _ 2002 for the fourth Quarter 2001 results and a press release on May 13, 2002, and an earnings éall
on May 14, 2002, for the first quartér 2002 results, including:

a. Overstatement of revenues‘ of approximately $824,000 in the fourth
quarter of ﬁscai year 2001 ending December 31, 2001, where reported quarterly revenues were
$100.8 million.

b. Overstatement of revenﬁes of approximately $204?000 in the first fiscal
quarter of fiscal year 2002 ending March 31, 2002, where reported quarterly revenues were $86.1
million. |

¢.  Understatement of loss of approximétely $616,000_ n the fourth quarter of .
fiscal year 2001 ending December 31 » 2001, where the fourth quarter’s reported net loss was $3.9
million, and reported net loss per dilutgd share was $.11 for 36,613,000 diluted shares.

d. Understatement of loss. of approximately $149,000 in the first quarter of
ﬁscal Year 2002 ending March 31, 2002, where the first quarter’s reported net loss was $643,000,
reported net loss per diluted shére was $.02 for 3 6,713,000 diluted shares, and reported earnings

before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization (“EBITDA”) was a positive $7.5 million.



B. Second Eclipse Transaction: $4 Million
Eclipse Order in the Second Quarter of 2002

19. = A $4 million Eclipse transaction at the close of the quarter erided June 30, 2002‘

(the second quarter. of 2002)’ also resulted in Lumenis reeognizing revenue and preﬁts in its Form

| 10-Q ﬁled with the Commission on August 15 2002 ina manner that did not comport with |

'GAAP. The improper recogmtlon related to an oral promlse from Genger to Echpse that
pennltted Echpse to substitute mventory Addltlonally, Genger prov1ded payment terms that
extended consxderably beyond the terms of the partles recently executed dlstnbution agreement :
and well beyond those normally accepted by Lumenis. ‘Finally, i issues r_elatlye to Eclipse’s
creditworthjness existed because of questiens surrounding the viability of Eclipse absent
Lumenis business and the impact of Lumenis’ 2001 forgiveness of Eclipse receivables. Morano
knew about the extended payment terms. He also knew about and recklessly disregarded the
issues related to Eclipse’s creditworthiness.

20.  The new distribution agreement between Eclipse and Lumenis, entered into as of

'Dec.ember 31, 2001, iriitially granted Eclipse “net 30 day” payment terms, meaning that Eclipse
was required to pay Lumenis for purchases within 30 days of shipment. Shortly thereafter,

' Lumenis agreed to amend those payment terms to net 60 days.- The amendment was made in part
~ to permit Eclipse a greater opportunity to sell the products to end users before re'quiring Eclipse
to pay Lumenis.

21  As ’dle second quarter of 2002 was coming to a close, Genger contacted Eclipse

-and requested that it place a $4 million ord_er. Instead of requiring Eclipse to pay for the products

pursuant to the standard net 30 or net 60 day terms, Genger and Lumenis granted Eclipse



‘extended payment ternis, specifically $1.5 mﬂlién due in 90 days, $500,000 due in 180 days, and
~ $2 million due in 270 days. It was the larggst ordér Eclipse had ever placed with Lumenis. The
. - extended payment terms were provided in part to allow Eclipse a greater of;portunﬁy-to. sell the

producté to end users before requiring Eclipse to pay Lumenis because Eclipse lacked an ability
to pay for $4bmillion in products on standard terms absent sell-through to eﬁd customers.

22.° -Eclipse‘ initially placed an order for $4 million of speciﬁc Lumenis products, but
" Lumenis lacked sufﬁcieﬁt inventbry-to fill the entire o_fdér. Rafher fhan wait until Lumenis
~ possessed all of the products that Eclipse had ordered, Whjch would havé occurred after the close
of the financial reporting period, Eclipse and Lumenis agreed that Eclipse would accept some
products different than thése initially requésted, buf that Luménis currently had in inventory, to |
ensure that the total order remained $4 million.

23.  Aspart of the deal, Genger orally promised Eclipse a right to substitute all the
products it was then purchasing for different products in the future. Eclipse, infact, with Genger
~and Morano’s épproval, later exchanged a pértioh of the inventory it received in conneétion with
the $4 million order for different products. |

24 Qn August 5, 2002, Lumenis issued a press release announcing its second_ quarter
12002 ﬁnaﬁcial results. Morano worked on and reviewed the releasé prior to its issuance. The |
release announced revenue of $92.2 million, including $4 million from the Ecl_ipse transaction,
and stated that Lumenis’ revenue was in line with previous revenue guidance of $90-95 million:

Our performance this quarter enabled us to deliver on several vpromis‘es we made to

investors. 'Most importantly, we were cash flow positive and met our revenue and gross
" margin targets.
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Inclnéion of the improperly renognized $4 million Eclipse_transaction in Lumenis’ quarterly
reyenne' allowed the nompany to meet the revenue target it had previously promised to investors.
- Lumenis’ stonk price, which previously had been declining stgadily, in part because the company
missed its revenue targets in the prior‘two qﬁarters more thén doubled in the days following the
release, Jumpmg from $3. 19 per share on August 510 $6. 55 per share on August 26, 2002.

25. On August 13,2002, prior to Lumenis’ filing of its quarterly financials with the
Commission, Lumems outside auditor emallgd Morano and informed him that after discussions
‘with auditors in his U.S. afﬁliate, he had accounting concerns related to the recognition of the $4
' miilion sale to Eclinse in the senond 'quar'ter. The auditor requested significant additional
information to resolve the concerns and also reqnested from Morano an opportunity to discuss
the matter with the Lumenis audit committee. |

26.  The outside auditor’s concerns focused on two issues. The ﬁrét issue was whether
Lumenis needed an independent third-party valuation to determine whether the distribution
business buyout provision contained in the new distribution agreement with Eclipse conStitufed a
revenue incentive, su_én that revenue would need to be reduced for transactions involving Eclipse.
The second issue was whether reco_gnition of revenue on sales to Eclipse should be deferred until
. Eclipse sold fhe products to end users, taking into consideration the impact that Lumenis’ pfiof
forgiveness of the $3.6 million in Eclipse receivables had on Lumenis’ ability tn immediately
recognize revenue on sales to Eclipse and the vinbility of Eclipse absent anenis’ bnsiness.

27‘. By August 15, 2002 — the day Lumenis’ quarterly fmanc_ial filing was due at the.
Cnmnﬁssion - neither Morano nor Lumenis had provided the outside auditor with the additional_

information he requested. Morano knowingly or recklessly disregarded the legitimate concerns
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rjaisedﬂby Lumenis’ Ohtsi'd(_a auditors, and failed td undertake a substantiai inquiry into most if not
all of the issues raised. Despite this, on August 15, 2002, Lumenis filed its Form

10-Q, signed by Morano, cqntajning false financial statements calculated bas¢d on the ¢ntire. $4
million Eclipse Qrder being feéog_nized as a proper sale in the second quarter. Mora_no cert‘iﬁed.
the aécuracy of the Form 10-Q in a Form S-K filed with the Commission on the same day.

v. ‘28. Unde_r' GAAP, recc;gnition of revenue on product sales, where a right of return or
exéhange exists, is proper only when, among other things, the amount of future returns can b¢
reasonably estimated an_d, to the extent mgasurable, a reserve is recorded in that amount.

: Absénce of historical expeﬁence with éimilar types of sales of sﬁnilar products may impair fhe’

' abiiity to make a reasonable estimate. In addition, in sitﬁations where a right of return or

; exchange exists, revenue can only be récognized when, among other things, the buy'er’s :
obligation to pay is not contingent én resale of thé product. All of these elements were miséing
in this transaction. In addition, collectability of the funds was ﬁot reasonablyv assured at the time
the revenue was r‘gcogm’zed, and unresolved accounting questions surrounding Eclipse’s viability
and its past relationship with Lumenis should have impactgd revenue recognition. Asa résult,
recognition of the $4 million in connection with _this fransa_c_tion was not in conformity with
GAAP. _'

| | 29. Gengerband‘Mor.ano knew or were reckless in ﬁot kﬂowing this transaction should
not have been recognized as a sale in the segond quarter of 2002 and that reporting it as such

-‘ would be misleading to investors.

30.  The improper recognition of the $4 million sales transaction ‘in the second quarter

of 2002 resulted in the public dissemination in Commission filings and other communications,
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including a press release on August .5, 2002 and an earnings call on ‘Augus‘t 6, 2002, of false and
| misleadingﬂﬁnancial information by defendants, including: |

" a. Overstatement of second quarter revenues of approximately $4 million,
where reported quarteriy revenu_es were $92.2 million.

b. Understatement of loes in the second quarter of approximately $2.9 |

- million, where tiie second quarter’s reported net loss was $1.3 million; reported net loss per
diluted share was $.04 for 36,798,000 diluted shares, and reported EBITDA was a positive $8.4
million. | | | o

C. The Third Eclipse Transaction:
$750, 000 Order in the Third Ouarter 0f 2002

31. | An Echpse transaction, brokered by Genger and approved by Morano, at the close
 of the quarter. ended September 30 2002 (the third quarter of 2002) also resulted in Lumems
recording revenue and associated,proﬁts on its books and recognizing revenue in its Form 10-Q
filed with the Commission on November 19, 2002 in a manner that did not comport with GAAP
32.  Near the end of the third qUarter of 2002, Genger approached Eclipse and asked
- that it place an order with Lumenis. Eclipse initially did not want to place an order because it
had just nurcnased $4 million of products in the prior quarter. -As a way to entice Eclipse into
doing s0, Genger told Eclipse that Lumenis had sales orders for “Lightsheer’f lasers that Lumenis
| could not fill due to an inventory shortage.\ Eclipse possessed Lighteheer lasers in its inventory.
Genger offered to permit Eclipse to fill Lightsheer sales orders with Eclipse inventory on the

condition that Eclipse order “Quantum” lasers in a dollar amount equal to the Lightsheer sales
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orders Lumems would provide. As part of the deal, Genger agreed that Ecl1pse would not have
to pay Lumenis for the Quantums until it collected on the Lightsheer sales orders

33.  Priorto ﬁnahzmg the transactlcn, Genger sought Morano’s approval of the
deal. In a telephone call 1n late September 2002 lnvolving, among others, Morano and Genger,
Genger propoSed pasSing Lightsheer sales‘ orders to Eclipse in exchdnge for Eclipse ordering

- Quantums of an identical dollar amount to the l,ightsheer sales orders to be provided. As part of
the proposed trans-action, Genger and Morano understood that Eclipse Would not be required to
.pay Lumenis for the Quantums until such time as Eclipse had colleCted funds ﬁom the
Lightslleer .sa_les. order customers. Morano and Gellger agreed to discuss the pfoposed transaction
in further detail to determine whether to approve it. Thereafter, thedeal was approved.

34. Thetransaction as finalized requiled.Lumenis to provide Eclipse with Lightsheer
sales orders totaling 7$750,21 1.20 and Eclipse to orderr Quanﬁuns totalingr $750,211.20. Lumenis
agreed to permit Eclipse to collecl'on the Lightsheer sales orders before requiring it to pay for the
Quantums. Genger and Morano wefe aware Lumenis had agreed to permit Eclipse to collect on".
the nghtsheer sales orders before requiring it to pay for the Quantums.

35. © Eclipse would not have placed an order with Lumenis in the third quarter of 2002
absent Lumenis agreemg_to prov1de it w1th L1ghtsheer sales orders. Genger was aware Ecllpse
would not have placed an order wlth Lumenis in the third quarter of 2002 absent Lumenis
agr_eeing to provide Eclipse with Lightsheer sales orders.
| 36.  Lumenis did not deliver the Lightsheer orders before }the end of the third quartel_.
In early and mid-October, Eclipse, in an effort to collect the money on lhe Lightsheer sales orders

that would allow it to pay Lumenis, requested that Lumenis provide it with the Lightsheer sales

14


http:$750,211.20

orders it had been promised. Lumeriié was unable to rdo so. Morano was aware botl.llof the
Eclipse requests for the sales orders and Lumenis’ difﬁculty in providing the sales orders. .

_ ‘37. In mid-October 2002, even though it had just bdught $750,000 worth of Quantum |
lasers, Eclipse requested to eXchange approﬁmately $835,000 in Quantumé it had purchased
previously for different lasers. Morano was aware of this EClibse request. |

| 38. On October 28, 2002, Eclipse’s CF’O emailed Genger (through Genger’s. aésistant)
and another Lumenis employee citing- “thé_de;al” made with Genger ‘at the close of Septemberi that
linked ther provision of the Lightsheer saies orders with Eclipse’s payment on the Quantums. A
. Lumenis fmaﬁCe staff empldYee responded to the October 28 Eclipse CFO eméil'on NoVember 4, _
2002, copying Genger (through' his assistant). The email does not dispute Eclipse’s description
of the deél and apologizes for “the exﬁeﬁxe delays in meeting our éommitment to you.”

39. . In early November, the same Lumenis finance staff employee séught approval o
from Morano and Genger to buy back the Lirghtsheersvin Eclipse’s inventory as a means to;
among other things, address Lumenis’ failure to provide Eclipse with Lightsheer ‘sales orders.
Such a Buy_back would have provided Eclipse with the same cash flow it would have received

| had Lumenis provided it with the Lightsheer sales orders, thereby allowing Eclipse to pay for the
Quantums. Morano and Genger approved the bﬁyback offer, though it ultimately never came to
fruition. |

40.' On November 19, 2002, despite the clear link betwe_eh the provision of the
Lightsheer sales orders and the payment for the Quantums, Luménis, with Morano’s kn‘owledgé,
improperly recognized revenue of over $750,000 and associated profits in connection with this. :

transaction in its Form 10-Q filed with the Commission for the third quarter of 2002. Morano

15



' signed the Form 10-Q on behalf of Lumenis and also certified the accuracy of the Form 10-Qina .
Form 8-K filed with the Commission on the same day.
41.  Thereafter, Lumenis remained unablé- to provide Ecli_psé withv any Lightsheer sales
orders. Since}Ecli'pse was unable to collect funds from the Lightsheef end users, it demanded it
be permitted to return the Quantums it.had just received. Gengér and Morano agreéd._ Rather -
than feverse the over $750,000 out of its financial statements in the third quarter of 2002,
Lumenis reversed its recogniﬁon of revénue from the F;clipse Quantum transactién in the fourth |
quartér 0f 2002. | |
42.  Eventhough this was an unusuél transaction with an important partnér, at no time ’ _
prior to recognizing the revenue in connection with '.this transaction did Morano inform Lumenis’
outside auditor that payment by Eclipse on the $750,000 in Quanttﬁns was in any way linked to
its being provided and collecting on an equal amount of Lightsileer sales orders.

43.  Under GAAP, revenue should nof be recoghjzed until it is realized or real‘izable
and eamc;d. This standard is satisfied in part when, among other things, collectability of the
funds is reasonably assured. Here, Lumenis recognized revenue on the purported sale to Eclipse

~ that was contingent on Lumenis’ obligation to provide Lightsheer orders, and cdllectability was
- ‘contingent Eclipse colleting an equal amount from third pérties. As such, Lumenis departed
~ from GAAP in reéogrﬁzing this $750,000 revenue.
44.  Genger and Morano knew or were reckless in not knowing this transaction should

not have been recognized as a sale in the third quarter of 2002 and reporting it as such would be

misleading to investors.
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45. The irnpfopér recognition of the $75()',000‘.sales trahsaction m the third quarter of
2002 fesulted in the public disseminatibn in Commission filings and other connnunjcations, |
including a press release on October 29, 2002 and an earnings call on October 30, 2002, of false
»and mislgading’ financial information by defendants, including:
’ a. | Ovéfstatement of tﬁird éuarter revenues of approximately $750,000, where
reported quarterly revénues were $90.2 million.
b. Understatemént of loss of approximately $541 ,000 in the third quarter,

- where the quarter’s reported net loss was $928,000, reported net loss per diluted share was $.02

~ for 37,264,000 diluted shares, and reportéd EBITDA was a positive $8 million.

I.  Improperly Accounted For Transaétibns With Other Pérties

. 46. Throughouf 2002 and early 2003, Lumenis departed from GAAP in accounting for
a number of large transactions with clients other thé.n Eclipse that resulted in the improper
recognition of nearly $3 million in revenue and associated profits. Genger and/or Morano were ’

directly involved in all six transactions.

A. Shipment of Products Not Ofdered by Dr. N in the First Quarter of 2002
- 47.  Lumenis improperly recorded m its books and reéognized $116,000 in re&enue
and éssociated vproﬁts related to é sale to a doctor in Florida (“Dr. N”) in the quarter ended Mafch
31, 2002 (the first quarter of 2002). Genger granted Dr. N aright of product substitution when |
- Lumenis was unable to ship what he ordered, and instead shipped unwanted products totaling
approximately the same dollar value as the desired products. |
48. . Towards the end of the first quarter in 2002, Dr. N wanted to buy three LightSheer

XC laser systems. The products were not available for shipment and instead Genger made a deal
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with the doctor Wheréby Lumenis senf three LightSheer ET laser systems and Genger promised
Dr. N that he could return the LightSheer ET systems for: LightSheér XC systems wheﬂ the
pfoducts became available. | | ‘7

49. | Dr.N refused to pay until the LightSheer XC systems_hé ordered were pfovided.
vGenger was informed that Dr. N would n;)t pay until he reéeived the lasers he ordered, and
Genger approved the shipment of reblacement lasers to the buYér. L

50. Lume-nis‘ 'ilhproperly reportéd the $1 16,000 in revenue and associated profits in '
-the first quarter .'of 2002 in its Form IO-Q filed with the Comnﬁssion on May 15, 2002.

| 51. To .propérly reéognize revenue, GAAP requires that all I;ights qf retum/eXchange ‘ |
havé been exercised or expéred. _Lumenjs récbgnized the sale to Dr. N upon shipment while it |
still had an outstanding obligation to exchange the products. Aé arresult, ité recognition of
.$1 16,000 in connection with this transaction upon shipment of the unordered products (i.e., the
Lightsheer ET lase; systems) was not in confdrmity with GAAP. Gcnger knew or recklessly
disregarded the fact that it was improper to recognize this sale transaction given the pending
obligation_ to Dr. N and reporting it as such ‘woﬁld be rhisleacﬁng to investors.

52..  The irnproi)er recognition of the $116,000 sales traﬁsaction involving Dr. N
resulted in the public dissemiﬁation in Commission ﬁlingé and other communications, inqluding
a press release and earrﬁngs call on February 28, 2002, of false and misleading ﬁnéncial
information, including: |

a. | Overstatement of revenues of approxiniatély $116,000 for the first fiscal

quarter of 2002, where reported quarterly revenues were $86.1 million.
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b. | Understaterﬁenf of loss of approximately $68,000 for the first quarter of R
' -ﬁscel year 2002 ending March 31, 2002, where the first quarter’s reported net loss was $643 ,000, |
reported net loss per diluted share was $.02 for 36,713,000 diluted shares, and reported EBITDA
wasa positive $7.5 million. | o

B. The $600,000 Transaction with Pure Laser
"in the Third_ and Fourth Quarters of 2002

| 53.  Lumenis improperly recorded in its books and recognized over $600,000 in
vreve_riu.e and associated profits related to a sale to Pure Laser (“Pure”) in the quaiters ended
“September 30, 2002 end December 31, 2002 (thethird' and fourth quarters of 2002). It was
improper for Lumenis to recognize the sales to Pure upon shipment where there was no definitive
agreement on payment terms and cellectability of the debt from Pure was not reasonably aseured.
" Morano both approved the transaction aﬁd decided to record it as revenue over the objections of
Lumenis’ finance staff. |
54. In September 2002, que wes a start-up company with limited financial resources
and a new Lumenis client. As of September 30, 2002 (the last day of fhe third quarter of 2002),
Morano knew that Lmnenis-and Pure had not agreed in writing on paymeﬁt terms. Morano also
knew that Lumenis’ revenue recognition policy required that the terms of any transaction be
finalized in a signed writing that was received by the company prior to the end of the quarter in
which the sale was to be counted.
55.  Prior to the close of the second quarter, Lumenis’ Senior Financial Officer for the
Americas (“SFO”) told Morano and Genger that neither she nof the Americas treasurer believed

the Pure transaction should be approved because it did not meet Lumenis’ creditworthiness
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| standards. The SFO also eomme!njcated that éhe and the treasurer recommended not to ship
products to Pure and that Lumenis not recegnize revenue in connection with the transaction.
Over those objections, Morano approved the treinSactien and iﬁdicated that Lumenis should shi‘p
‘and record the sale in the second quarter. Thereafter, Lumenis included fevenue and associated
profits in conn‘ectien with the transaction on Lumenis® internal books and records.

56. -On October 9, 2002, after the close of the third quarter.2002 financial reporting
- period, Pure signed and retufned a sales quote to Lumenis that stated “'[n]e payment fer 6 months
internal financing to be acceptable By buyer,” leaving open the date by which the sales price |
would be paid off. Lumenis’ revenue recognitiloﬁ policy typically required payment terms of net
thirty or net sixty days for rec:'ognition upon product shipmeﬁt. The Americas treasurer informed
Morano of the terms of the sales qﬁote. Soon thereafter, Morano approved payment terms ofno .
- payment for 6 months to be followed by 24 months internal Lumenis financing (i.e., payment |
over 30 months). _ Such extended payment terms were highly unusual. At the time, Moreno was
aware that the payment terms had not been agreed to 1n wﬁting.

57.  Shortly thereafter, the SFO and treasurer included the Pure t:ransection on a so-
called “credit accrual” list of transactions they beljeved should not be recordedl as revenue in the
given quarter. In a subsequent phone call, the SFO informed Morano that both she and the
treasurer did not feel comfortable with the transaction and bel_ieved that Lumenis should not
reeognize revenue in connection with it. Soon ‘;hereafter Morano infermed her that the Pure
transaction sheuld be taken off the credit accrual list and that revenue in connection with the

transaction should not be reversed.

58.  The Form 10-Q Lumenis filed with the Commission on November 19, 2002
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_contained apprcxirnately $232,000 in revenue in connection with the Pure transaction. Morano
‘signed the Form 10-Q on behalf of Lumenis and separately certiﬁed its accuracy in a Forrri 8-K
filed with the Commission on the same day.
59.  In mid-December 2002, Morano Jearned that Lumenis still lacked a written
| agreemeiit on payment terms concerning the Pure transaction. Wheii Lumenis tried to get a
signed agreement, Pure claimed that it had agreed to payments over 36 nionths, not 24 monthe.

.60.  Despite Morano’s awareness of the lack of agieement on payment terms, Lumenis '
- recognized an additional $373,000 in connection with this transaction in the fourth i]uarter of
_ 2002 in its Form 10-K filed with the Commissior_i on March 28, 2003. Morano signed tlie Form
10-K on behalf of Lumenis and separately certified its accuracy within the filing.

61.  Pure did not sign an agreement on payment ierme until April 23, 2003, more than
eix months after Lumenis originally recorded the transaction. The terms of the agreement called
- for payments to be meide over 48 months. Lunienis did nct reverse the revenue recognized in

ccnnectio_n with this transaction until the fourth quarter of 2003. |

| 62.  Under GAAP, revenue should not be recognized until it is realized or ieali_zable
and earned. This standard ie generally\ satisfied when, among other things, there is persuasive
evidence of an égreement and collectability of the fuiids are reasonably assured. .In the Pure
transaction, both Qf these elements were lacking at the time of the revenue recognition, and as
such Lumenis’ recognition of over $600,000 in connection with this transaction departed from

" GAAP. Morano knew or recklessly disregarded the fact thai recognition»of the sale in the third}
and fourth quarters was not in conformity with GAAP and reporting it as such Would be

misleading to investors.
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| 63.  The improper recbgnition of .the approximately $600_,000 sales transaction with
Pure in the third and fourth quarters of 2002 resulted in the public dissenﬁnation of false and
misleading financial infonnation by defendants in Commission filings and other |
" .communications; including a press release on October 29? 2002 and an §arnings call on chober
30, 2002 for the third quarter results, and a press release on February 19, 2003 and an earnings
call on February 20, 2003 .for the fourth quarter results, including:
| a. Overstatement of revenues of approximately $231,000 for the third quarter |
of 2002, where reported qua;terly revenues were $90.2 million. |
b. Underétatement of loss of approximatély $174,000 for the third quarter of
2002, Where. the quarter’s reported net loss was $928,000, reported net loss per diluted share was .‘
$.02 for 37,264,000 diluted shares, and reported EBITDA was a positive $8 million.
c. Ove_rstat'ement. of Tevenues of approximately $373,000 for the fourth
quarter of 2002,'Where reported quarterly revenues Wefe $79.4 million.
| d. Understatement of lpss of approximately $260,000 for fhe fourth quarter,
where the quarter’s reported net loss was $39.716 millioﬁ, reported net loss per diluted share was

©'$1.07 for 37,277,000 diluted shares, and reported EBITDA was a negative $9.5 million.

C.  The $434,000 Transaction with Loving Laser in the Third Quarter of 2002

64. In the quarter ended Septémber 30, 2002 (the third quarter of 2002), Lumenis
improperly recorded on its books and recognized revenue of almost $434,000 in its Form 10-Q
filed with the quﬁlnission on November 19, 2002 in connection with the sale of six lasers to
Loving Lasér Centers (“Loving”), four of which lasers Lumenis provided with Morano’s

approval on a “bill and hold” basis. Genger was involved in the negotiation of the transaction,
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and Morano vapproved Both the transaction itself and the decision to récord it as-r.evenue despite

fhe objections of members of Lumenis’ ﬁnémce stafﬂ

65.  Generally, a “bill and hold” transéction isa practice whereby a customer agrees to
purchase goods but the 'se;ller retains physical posséssion until the custbmer requests shipment to
designated lobcations.r SEC Accounting and Auditing Enforéement Release No. 108 (August 5,
1986) (“AEER 108”) sets foﬁh seven criteria that, in connection with the normal requirements,
should be met for revenue recognition in bill and hold trénsactiqns: (1) the\risk of ownership‘

" must have péssed to 'file buyer; (2) the customer must have made a fixed bomnﬁttneqt to purchése '
the goods; (3) the buyer must request the transaction be on a bill and hold basis; (4) the buyer
must have a s_ubsfantial business pﬁrpose for ordering the goods on a bill and ho]d basis; (5) there
must be a ﬁxéd delivery schedule'for the delivery of the goods; (6) ordered goodé must be

| segregated from the seller’s inventory; and (7):equipment must‘.bé complete and ready for
shipment. At fhe time of the revenue recognition in connection with the Loving transaction,
Lumenis lacked a definitive agreement on payment terms, collectability was not reasonably

' | assured, and certain bill aﬁd hold criteria were not ‘met.

66. In late September 2002, the Americas treasurer complainéd in an email to Morano
and othérs that the “agreed upon [Loviﬁg] payment terms are not'in writing and are unclear” and
noted that Loving had a poor credit history. The treasurer sent another eméjl to Morano stating
Genger had “approved shipment with no financing.” Morano instructed a Lumenis sales director
to sell two lasers to vaing immediately through a leasing‘-’company‘and four to Loviﬁg on a bill
and hold basis, with payments to bégiﬁ in Decembér 2002. On September 30, 2002 (the last day

of the third quarter of 2002), the Americas treasurer informed Morano that the lease purchase
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orders were not issued dﬁe to “very poor credit” and specifically asked if “payment terms have '
'been. doeumehted.” They had not been, and Morano did not folloW—up to determ’ine if they had
been. Thereafter, Lumenis agreed to provide Loving with internai financing.
.67.  Prior te the close of the ﬂ’lll'd quarter, the SFd for the Americas told Morano and
‘ Gehger that neither she nor the Americas treasurer helieved that the Loving trensaction should be
appiox}ed from a credit standpoint. The SFO allsvo. communicated that she and the treasurer’ |
‘recommended that Lumenis not ship products and not recognize revenue in connection with the
»Vtranvsaction. .Over those .olbj ectiohs, Morano approyed the trensaetion and indicated thet Lumenis
'should‘ ship ahd post the transaction. Thereafter, Lumenis included revenue in conheetion wi_th
the transaction on its internal books and recerds. |
68.  Shortly after the close of the third quarter but before Lumenis filed its financial
stetements' with the Commiseion, the SFO and treasurer ineluded the Loving transaction on a so-
called “credit accrual” list of transactions they believed should not be recofded asrevenue. Ina
subsequent phone call, the SFO informed Morano that both she ahd the treasurer did not feel
comfortable with the transactioh and believed that Lumenis should not recoghize revenue in
_ eonnection with it. Soon thereafter Morano informed her that the Loying transaction should be
| taken off the credit accrual list and tha‘t‘revenue in connection with the transactioh should hot_ be
reversed.
| 69. Lurhenis recognized $434,000 in revenue in connection with the Loﬁng
transaction in a Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on November 19, 2002 for the third
| quarter of 2002. Moraho ‘si‘gned the Form 10-Q on behalf of Lumenis and separately certified its

accuracy in a Form 8-K filed with the Commission on the same day.
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70. -~ Lumenis did not recei%/e deﬁniﬁve written payment terms_. from Loving until
~ November 27, 2002. “The térms called for‘payment over 36 ménths. Both of these conditions
would have fequired that the revenue be deferred under Lumenis’ internal revenue recognition
criteria. |
| 71. Thé reéogﬁition of revenue in connection with this transaction was not in
conformity with GAAP becaﬁse th¢re was no persuasive evidence of an arrangement, a fixed or
‘ determiﬁable price was 'lacking, and collectability of the funds was not reasonably assured at the
time of the recognition of the revenue. Additionally, révenue recognition was not in conformity
with GAAP because the bill and héld sales lacked a fixed delivery schedule and the customer had
not made a fixed commitment to purchase the goods. Morano knew or recklessly disregarded the
fact that recognition of the_ sale in the third quarter was not in conformity w1th GAAP and
reporting it as such would be misleading to investors.
72.  The improper recognition of the $434,000 sales transaction with Loving in the
third quarter of 2002 re_suli:ed i'n. the f)ublic disse_minatibn in_‘Com»miss_ion filings and other
rcommunjc'ations, including a preé.s release on October 29, 2002 and an e‘arningé call on October
30, 2002, .of false and misleading ﬁnancial information by defendants, including:
a. Overstatement of reveﬁues of approximately $434,000 fdr the third quarter
| of 2002, where reported éuarterly revenues were $90.2 million.
b.  Understatement of loss of approximately $287,000 for the third quarter of
2002, where the vquarter’s reported net loss was $928,000, reporied net lpss per diluted share was

$.02 for 37,264,000 diluted shares, and reported EBITDA was & positive $8 million.
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D. Provision of Inferior Goods to Parpas to Rec'o'ggiz'e
$384.000 in Revenue in the Third Quarter of 2002

73.  Lumenis recorded in its books and recognized inzippropriafely $384,000 in
révenue in the quartér ended September 30, 2002 (fhe third quarter of 2002) in its Form 10-Q
‘ﬁled with the Commission on Novembef 19, 2002 when Genger authorized the shipment ofa
type of laser not requested by the buyer, distribﬁtor K.P. Parpais of G*réece (“Pérpas”) .

74.  On September 30, 2002, Parpas placed an o_fder Wi_th'Lumenis' for, mnéng ‘other‘v
things, a number of Lightshéers. Lmﬁeﬁis did not .have the requésted lasers in stock.. Despite
ﬂﬁs, Genger authorized the delivery of “service loéner” lasers _to. Parpés. Service loﬁnef laser§
- were used goods Wlﬁch often were utilized as démonétraﬁon units. In a letter dated December 4,
-2002, Parpas complajned that he had been sent lasers ofher than what he ;)rdered,' describing
those whiéh he received és “old” lasers and “jupk” which could not be presented to his client.

Subsequently, after a meeting with Genger, Lumenis agreed to refurbish the lasers it had
provided to Parpas at no cost to Parpas. Lﬁmef_lis did not do so until some time after March 13,
2003.

75. - Genger and Lumenis provided Pafpas with products he did not request as a way to
recognize revenue at the close of a financial reporting period.

76. Lumenis: recognized $384,000 in revenﬁe in ité Form 10-Q filed with the

Commission on November 19, 2002 for the third quarter of 2002.

77.  GAAP requires that revenue should not b_e.r.ecogniz'ed until it is realized or

realizable and earned. Revenues are earned when the selier has éubstantially aéComplished what

it must do to be entitled to the benefits represented by the revenues. Genger and Lumenis
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_ piovided Parpas wiih'products hg did not request as a way to recognize reivenuev at the close of ei
. financial reporting period. The resulting revenue recognition therefore did not comport with
GAAP Gengei knew or recklessl& disregarded the fact thai recognition of the sale in the third
quarter was not 1n conformity with GAAP and reporting it as such would be-misléading to
| investors.
78.  The improper recognition of the $384,000 sales transaction with Parpas in the
‘,third quarter of 2002 resulted in the public dissemination in Commission filings and"oth‘er
communications, including a press release on October 29, 2002 and an earnings call on Octobér
30, 2002, (if false -and misleading financial information, including: |
a. Oi/erstatement of revenues of approximately $384,000 for the third quarter
of 2002, where réported quarterly revenues were $90.2 million.
b. - Undgrstatement of loss of approximately $178,000 for the third quarter of
2002, where the quarter’s reported net loss was $928,000, reported net loss per diliited share was
$.02 for 37,264,000 diluted shares, and reported EBITDA was a positive $8 million. |

D. $754,_000 CIS/Onils Dent Transaction in the First Quarter of 2003

79.  Lumenis imprqperly recorded on its books and recognized $754,000 in the quarter
ended March 31, 2003 (the ﬁrst quarter of 2003) in its Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on
May 15, 2003 in connection with a bill and hold sales transaction that, among other t}iings,
iacked a fixed delivery schedule and reasonable assurances on collectability. Genger was a
| primary negotiator for Llimenis, anci Morano concluded that revenue recognition was appropriate

despite contrary opinions of at least three internal Lumenis accountants.
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80. - In this transaction, an independent sales rei)resentative who represented Opus
Dent, a Lumenis subsidiary that sold Lumenis dental products, approached the acting president Qf
Opus Dent an_d eﬁpre_ssed an interest in obtaining all Opus 20 dental lasers owned by Opus Deht
and Lumenis. At the time, the sales representative had not previously purchased anything from |
Lumenis or Opus Dent. The sales repféséntative told >th_e Opus Dent president that he was |

‘ involvéd with a éroup of ophthalmologists whd wfshed to convert the dental lasers for use in ﬂ1e
field of ophthalmology. The sales f,epresentative did not indicate whether he was buying i:he
lasers for resale to the group of ophthalmolo giéts or buying them on the -_ophthalmoldgists’

~ behalf. The Opus Dent president contacted Genger, and Lumenis séon determined that
Lumenis/Opus Dent owned approximately 21 new or used Opus 20 lasers in the U.S., Israel,

| .Tapan or Europe,i though a number of the lasers were not in Lumenis’ possession.

81.  Genger agreed to grant the sales representative extended payment terms of nearly
two years to purchase almost $i million in lasers. At some point, the sales representative and
Lumenis agreed to structure the transaction with an'entity ﬁamed CIS that was wholly-owned by
the sales representative. CIS was a one-man company based out of the sales representativel’s
home in California. When CIS indicated it did not want all of the lasers Iimmediately becauée it
did not have a-warehquse to store the lasers and because it wished to train the ophthalmologists

| before shipping lasers to them, Genger suggested structuring fhe transaction as a bill and hold
sale. Opus Dent had not previéusly undertaken any bill and hold sales.

- 82.  Morano approved the deal prior to the close of the quarter, even though Lumenis

had not performed a credit check on either the sales representative or CIS, and thus collectabiiity

28



~of the debt was not assured. Moreover, Morano was aware that the patyment terms greatly
exceeded those notmally_requiredt for revenue recog’tlition, at Lumenis.
83. At no time prior to the elovse of the first quarter of 2003 ditl CIS or the sales
representattve agree that Lumenis or Opus Dent had the ability to force the heretofore unnartxed
| “group” of ophthalmologists to p‘ay.in the event CIS or the seles representative fatled to do so.
84. In a.'memorandum dated March 3 1 , 2003 which copied Genger and Morano, CIS
. agreed to t)urchase the lesers with payments spread overa period 21 menths. “The memorandum
- ~did not inctude'a deli\?ery schedule (fixed or otherwtse), did not include a business purpose
explalmng the need for a bill and hold sale and 1nd1cated that Lumenis was agreemg to hold onto
the units “[a]t the request of [CIS].” The memorandum did not state that Genger had first
| suggested that the transaction be on a bill and hold basis. As of March 31, 2003, Lumenis lacked
a signed purchase order with terms and cotlditions from CIS, normally a requirement under
Lumenis’ revenue recognition policy.

85. .Shor.tly after the close of the quarter, CIS and Lumenis negotiated the terms of a
bill and hold letter agreement. Morano provided edits to the bill énd hold letter. Although CIS
ultimately signed a bill and hold letter on or about April 9, 2003, the letter, including the version
Morano rev1ewed in Apl'll was backdated to March 31, 2003 The letter also did not contain a
business reason explaining the need for the bill and hold sale and did not contain a fixed delivery
schedule for the lasers. | | |

86. As of March 31, 2003,Lumenis had neither segregated all the goods requested by

CIS nor readied them all for shipment as required for revenue recognition in conformity with
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- GAAP. In fact, somé' of the lasérs af issue w;ere not even in Lumenis’ possession as of the close
of the first quarfer of 2003.
87, Lumenis’ controllgr (who‘reported to Morano) and Lumenis’ assistant controller
did ﬁot believe revenue should be recognized in connection w1th the transactién'in the first
-~ quarter éf 2003, and conveyed their conclusions to M_orand. Their prmmpal issue dealt with the
colleétability of the debt and the extended payment terms. -Morano ignored their consensus
| position and detemﬁed iﬁstead to recognize revenue from the transaction.
88. On April 9, 2003, a temporary Opus Dent accountant/bodkkeepér informed
g Lumehié finance personhel via email of his conclusion that no revenue should be recognized in
connection with the transactidr;. He g:ited a number of :easoné for his conclusion, including the
1ack of a signed purchase order, the lack of a fixed delivery schedule, and the‘ fact that the goods
did not appear to be segregated or ready for shipment as required for revenue recognition in |
conformity with GAAP. Morano reviewed the email that same day. In an April 11 eﬁxail sent to
' Moraﬂ;) and others on Lumenis’ finance staff, the Opus Dent accountant reiterated his belief that
no revenue should be recognized.

89.  On April 10,2003, Lumenis received a Dun & Bradstreet credit report indicating
that CIS had only one employee and a past high credit of only $1,600. Morano thereafter told the»
' Opﬁs Dent president that Lumenis needed a guaranty for- CIS’s obligation. Prior to this time, the
Opus Dent presideht had not had any discussions with CIS or anyone else anut a third paxty‘

" potentially guaranteeing CIS’s obligation, nor had Lumenis or anyone else obtained such a

guaranty, either verbally or otherwise. Shortly thereafter, the Opus Dent president approached
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CIS and obfained a third party guaranty in the form of an April 17 leﬁer from a Colorado
' ophthalmologist. '

90. Shortly thereafter, Lumenis’ outside auditor re/quested that Lumenis provide him
with a purchasé order spéciinng thé terms and.cqnditions entered by CIS. Lumenis’ fevenﬁe
recogﬁition'policy required that a signed purchase order with .all of the ferms of the transaction be -

received by the end of the quarter in which a sale was to be recognized. As of that mid-April
2003 date, neither Lumenis ndr Opus D@nt had received from CIS a signed purchase 6rder w1th
‘terms and conditions. CIS sought to usé the fact that it had nbt yet pro.vid‘ed Lumenis and Opus
' Dént with these documents as a means to extract concessidns from Lumenis and Opus Dent. | On
April 25, .2003, CIS provided the Opus Dent president-with a'signed purchase order'wifh terms
and conditions. On the same day, the Opus Dent president faxed tﬁe documents to- Morano and
another in. Luménis’ corporate ofﬁées in New York City. Despite the April 25 handover date and
the mid-Aril 2003 efforts to use Lumenis’ lack of a signed purchase order and terms and
. co'nditions as leverage, the purchase order and terms and cohditions were dated March 30, 2003.
Mdra_no knew or récklessly disregarded the fact that the purchasé brder was backdated and had
nbt been receivéd by Lumenis prior to the quarter’s end. | |
91. " Lumenis’ auditor initially coﬁcluded that Lumenis should not currently reéognjze
'any revenue in connection with.this tranéaction in part because collectability could not be defined
| as proBable, and certe;in bill and hold criteria did not appear to be satisfied. Morano knew of that
conclusion. Thereafter, Lumenis, at Morano’s urging; -buﬂied i’»tsr auditor into accepting the
company’s false and improper conclusion and recognized $754,000 jn revenue and associated |

profits in connection with this transaction in its Form 10-Q for the first quarter of 2003 filed with
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the Commissién on Mayvl'S, 2003. -Morano signed the Form IO-Q oﬁ behalf of Lumenis and
separately certified its aécuracy as part of the Form 10-Q filing.
92. In connectioﬁ with the review of the CIS transactiéns, Morano made false or
: nﬁsléading statements to Luineni_s’ auditor; or omitted to state méterial facts necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the _circﬁms_tanégs under which they _Were made, not misleading.
Morano félsely informed the auditor that the credit expos.ﬁrelin this case lwas “similar to exposure
we take in other bsal.es to physicians.” Morano providgd inaccurate and seemingly fabricated
business rationales for why CIS desiréd to receive the lasers on a bill and hold basis. Morano
failed to inform the auditor that certain of the relevant documents used to support revenue
~ recognition in connection with this ﬁansaction were backdated, including the bill and hold letter.
Morano féiled to inform the auditbr that the purchase order with terms and conditiohs dated
March 30, 2003 wés not received by Lumenis until late April 2003. Morano failed to inform the
auditor that CIS had_not agreed to provide a third-party guaranty prior to the' close of the first
quarter of 2003 ﬁnancial réporting period. | | |
93.  After niaking one paymenf to Lumenis, CIS refused to pay, citiﬁg in part
Lumenis’ refusal to make what it claimed were. agreed-to modifications to the lasers. Instead of
;eversing the sale from tile first quarter of 2003, Lumenis reversed the s_ale» in thé second quarter
of 72003. _
94.  Recognition of this revenue in the first quarter of 2003, was not in éonformity with
GAAP because there was no fixed delivery schedule for the delivery of the goods at the time of
the revenue recognition, Genger, and not CIS, initially requestéd that the sale be on a bill and

hold basis, collectability of the funds was not reasonably assured, and the transaction relied upon
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backdated documents to present the éppearancé of completion in the first quarter of 2003.
‘Morano knew or recklesSly disregarded the fact that recognition of the sale in the first quarter
was not in confoxmity with GAAP and repbrting it as such would be misleading to»invesfors.
95.  On April 29, 2003, Lumenis filed a Form 8-K with the _Commissibn that included
a press release announcing the first quarter 2003 financial résults. The release‘announced T
~ quarterly revenue of $80.2 million which allowed the company to meet its previously announced'
" estimate of $80 to $85 million in the quarter. Inclusion éf $754,.000.in revenue in connection
with this CIS 1ran$action permitted Lumenis to aﬁhounce quarterly revenue in line with its
previously issued i)ublic estimate. Meeting‘th'is éstimate was irﬁpdrtant because, once again, the
company had missed meeting its prior revenue‘estim_ates' in the third and fourth quarters of 2002. |
96.  Inaddition to the dissemination of false revenué figures, the improper recognition
of the $754,000 sales transaction with CIS in the first quarter of 2003 resulted in the public
dissemination in Commission filings and other communications, including a press release and
ea:rm'ngsb call on April 29, 2003, of other false and rrﬁsleading ﬁnanbial information by
| defendants, including:
a. Understatement of loss of appfoximately $309,000 for the first quarter of -

2003, where the quarter’s reported net loss was $6.918 million, reported net loss per diluted share -

was $.19 for 37,277,000 diluted shares, and reported EBITDA was a positive $5 million.

E. The $632,000 Dr. Wang Transaction In The First Quarter of 2003
- 97.  Lumenis inappropriately recorded in its books and recognized $632,000 in
revenue in the quarter ended March 31, 2003 (the first quarter of 2003) in its Form 10-Q filed

with the Commission on May 15, 2003 in connection with a transaction involving a purchaser
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named Dr. Wang Yong An, of China. Morano and Genger approved the tiansaction despite
knowing thet-Lumenis lacked both financing arrangements and shipping inetructions-as of the
| close of the quarter. |
98.  While in the U.S. 1n mid-March 2003, Dr. Wang signed a purchase order for

$838,000 vi_n Luinenis piodueis. As of the close of the first quarter, the puichase order was the
only documentation Lumenis;‘had for the deai with Dr. Wang. The payment teims in the
. purchase order specified payment was “due upon [product] installation.” | Lumenis did not agree
to an installation date with Dr. Wang before quarter end.

| - 99.  As of the close of qnarter, the deal with Dr. Wang was not ﬁnalized. Lumenis -
lacked both ﬁnancing arrangements and shipping instructions, and Lumenis had not been
-vsucc_essful in contacting Dr. Wang to resolve the issu‘es.

100. Lumenis staff brought the transaction to the attention of Morano and Genger to
determine if the pioduets should ship.notwithstanding the lack of ﬁnancing arrangements and
delivery insu'uctione, both normally prerequisites to shipment and revenue recognition. Merano
and Genger approved the transaiction and authorized shipment of the products despite the missing
infoi’mation and documentation. The goods were ordered held at an eirport in Israel pending
Lumenis’ receipt of the shipping infdrmation._

101. Lumenis never delivered the order to Dr. Wang, and on June 19, 2003, the order
was canceled. |

102. Lumenis and Morano falsely represented to its outside auditor that the Dr. Wang
transaction ’was a bill and hold transaction that was being appropriately recognized as revenue.

The transaction failed to satisfy the relevant accounting criteria for revenue recognition at least in
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~ part because it lacked a fixed delivery schedule, the buyer lacked ba substantial business purpose
fof ordering the goods on a bill and hold basis, the risk ‘of ownership had not passed to the buyer,
énd the buyer had not ﬁade a fixed commitment to purchase the goods.
-: 103. Despite the laék of terms and shipping instructioﬁs, Lumenis recognized revenué
“of $632,000 in connectidh‘ with the transaction in the first quarter of 2003 in..its Form IO-Q filed
w1th the CominiSsion on May 15, 2003. Morano signed the Form 10-Q on behalf of Lumenis
| and separately certified its accuracy as part of the Form 10-Q ﬁlmg Inclusion of revenue in
connectioh with thJS transaction p¢rmittéd Lunieni_s to announce quarterly revenue for the first
qﬁarter 0f 2003 in line with its pfeviou'sly issued public estimate. |
104. GAAP requires that revenue be recognized when it is realized or realizable and
earned. This standard is ‘Satisﬁed in part when delivery of the product has occurred. Here,
delivery of the prodlict to Dr. ‘Wang never occurred, and further, collectability was not reasonably
assured. Also, ﬁsk of ownership had not passed to Dr Wang. As such, Lumenis’ recognition of
- revenue in the first quarter of 2003 in connectién with this transaction departed‘ from GAAP.
Mofano and Genger knew or was reckless in nof knowing this transaction should not have been
‘recognized as revenue in the first quarter of 2003.
105. The improper recognition of the $632,000 sales transaction with Dr. Wang in the
ﬁrsf quartér of 2003 resulted in the public dissemination in Commission ﬁiings and éther
* communications, includihg a press release and an earnings call on April 29, 2003, of false and
misleading financial information by defehdants, in@luding:
a. Overstatement of revenues of approximately $632,_0_00 for the first quarter

of 2003, where reported quarterly revenues were $80.2 million.
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b. Understatement of loss of approximately $461,000 for the ﬁrst quarter of

12003, where the quarter’s reported net loss was $6.918 million, reported net loss per dilﬁted share

~

 was $.19 for 37,277,000 diluted shares, and reported'EBITDA was a positive $5 million.

III.  Impact of the Improperly Accounted For Transactions

106. Be_low is a chart showing the cumulative impact by quarter of all of the above

discussed improper transactions in a given quarter on certain of Lumenis’ reported financial

" metrics (fhe “fevised”_humbers take into account the improper transactions).

2002 Q2

Financial Metric 2001 Q4 | 2002 Q1 2002 Q3 2002 Q4 2003 Q1
Reported Net Loss Before Taxes -$560 -$542 -$898-  --$312 -$36,974 -$5,628 |
Revised Net Loss Before Taxes -$1,176 -$759 -$3,806 -$1,492| . -$37;234 -$6,399
% Ldss Understatement 52.40% 28.62% 76.41% 79.09%| 0.70%| - 12.04%
Reported Net Loss -$3,900 ' -$643_ -$1,300 -$928 <$39,716 -$6,918
Revised Net Loss . -$4,516 -$840 -$4,208 -$2,108 -$39,976 -$7,689
% Loss Understatemerit 13.65% 25.26%| 69.11%| 55.98% 0.65% 10.02%
Reported EBITDA $7,500 $8,400 $8,000 -$9,500]  $2,000
Revised EBITDA $7,283 $5,492 $6,820 - -$9,760 $1,229
% EBITDA Overstatement 2.98% 52.95% 17.30% | - 2.67%]  62.69%
{(Understatement)
Reported EPS -$0.11 -$0.02 -$0.04 -$0.02 -$1 07 -$0.19
'l Revised EPS -$0.12 -$0.02 -$0.11 -$0.06 -$1.07 -$0.21
% Loss Understatement 833% 63.64%|  6667% 9.52%

(in thousands, except per share data, loss/profit numbers.are for indicated periods)

107.  Inaddition to the false filings with the Commission, Lumenis announced the

above described misleading financial metrics in quarterly pfess releases issued shortly after the

end of each quarter. For those press releases issued after March 1, 2002, Morano was involved
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with the proceés of réviewing the press releases for acéuracy priorbt(-) their dissemination and
knew or recklessly disregarded the fact that the press releases céntained materiélly misleading
financial metrics. Morano was listed as thé contact person for each of the misleading press
r_eleases issued .after March. 1, 2062. The presS releases with misleading quartérly financial

information were issued on the following dates:

Quarter Press Release Date(s)
Ended ' '
- 12-31-01 - 1-29-02, 2-28-02
33102 | 51302

1 6-30-02 -8-5-02
9-30-02 10-22-02, 10-29-02
12-31-02- 2-19-03
3-31-03 | 4-29-03

108.' During 2602 and 2003, Lumenis also held quarterly earnings calls, open to ‘_che
'public and market analysts, to discus the cémpé.ny’s financial resulté. Morano and Genger
participatéd in the conference phone calls and knew or recklessly disregarded the fact that they _
and others discloséd materially false and miSleading financial results. Transcripts of the calls |
were made available to the public and a récording of the actual call Was published on Lumenis’
website. In the eamingé calls after March 1, 2002, Morano knowingly or recklessly stated
materially misleading financial information in the earnings calls, including false reVenues,/n'et

loss, earnings per share, and EBITDA numbers as described above. The earnings calls occurred

~ on the following dates:

37



_ Qﬁarter ' Earnings Call Date(s)
Ended

12:31-01 | 2-28-02
3-31-02 - 51302
6-30-02 8-6-02 -
9-30-02 . 10-22-02, 10-29-02
12-31-02 2-20-03
3-31-03 4-30-03

109. In addition to the above described initial faise publicatibn of misleading ﬁnan01al
metrics in commission filings, press releases and earnings calls, the false metrics were repeated
by the défendants on nulherous occasions. For example, the Form 10-K filed for 2002 repeéted
the false quarterly results for the fourth quarter of 2001 and the first three quarters of 2002.
Additionally, when the company announced quérterly results for the fourth quarter of 2002, and
the ﬁrst two quarters of 2003, the misleading results from the fourth quarter of 2001, and the first
ﬁo quarters of 2002, respectfully, were republished. Morano and Genger knew or recklessly
: 'disrega;rded the fact that the false financial metrics would be republished at various times by
Lumenis. |

IV. ‘ 'Morano’s Certifications and Signatures

110.  As a duly authorized Lumenis officer and Lumenis CFO, Morano signed
Lumenis’ Forms 10-Q or Forms 10-Q/A filed with the Commission on May 15, 2002 (first
quarter of 2002), August 15, 2002 (second quarter of 2002), November 19, 2002 (two filings, one

~ for the second quarter of 2002 and the other for the third quarter of 2002) and May 15, 2003 (first

38



quarter of 2003) and its Form 10-K filed with the Commission on March 28, 2003 (ﬁséal ye&

2002). Mqrano also signed Fvorms 8-K filed with the ComnﬁsSion containing certiﬁcatiohs of the

- Forms 10-Q or 10-K as required By. Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 [18 U.S.C. § |
13 50] on August 15, 2002 (second quarter 2002), November 19, 2002 (third quart_er.‘ 0f 2002),
March 28, 2003 (fiscal year 2002), and May 15, 2003 (first quarter of 2003). In addition, four of
the Lumenis filings — the Form 10-Q/A filed on November 19, 2002 (second quarter of 2002),
the Form IO-Q filed on November 19, 2002 (third quarter of 2002)_, the Form 10-K ﬁlédvon

: Maréh 28,2003 (ﬁscal year 2002), and the Form 10-Q ﬁled on May. 15, 2003 (first quarter of
2003) - icontainé‘d Morano certifications as required by Exchange Act Rule 13a-14 [17 C.F.R. §
240.13a-14]. Moré.no also signed a Form 8-K ﬁled with the Commission on April 30, 2003 that

contained a press release announcing Lumenis’ first quarter 2003 financial results.

V. S'ecurities. Offered in 2002 and 2003
111. | Lumenis offcréd securities in 2002 and 2003 at th¢ same time its financial
statements contained materially falée statements.

112.  InJuly 2001, Lumenis filed with the Commission a Form S-8 registering
securities to be offered pursuant to an employee stock option plan. The Form S-8 incorborafed

' By reference all Lumenis reporting. filings to be made in the future.

113. In March 2063, Lumenis filed with the Commission a Form SC TO-I tender offer
statement that offered those holding Lumenis options with an exercise price of greater than $6.00
the right to exchange those options for new options with an exercise price equal to the market
value at the time of the exchaﬁge. Morano signed the Form SC TO-I as executive vice president

and CFO of Lumenis.
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114. - In July 2003, Lumenis filed with the Commissibn a Fori_n S-8 registering
securities to be offered pursuant to an employee stock option plan. .Morano signed the Form S-8 -
as executive vice president and CFO of Lumenis. The F orm S-8 incorporated by reference the
Form 10-K filed by Lumenis on March 28, 2003 for fiscal year 2002 and the Form 10-Q filed by
Lumenis on May 15, 2003 for trle first quérter of 20_0,3‘. |
FIRST CLAIM
(All Defendants )

Fraud In Connection With The Purchase Or Sale Of Securities in
' Violation of Exchange Act § 10(b) and Rule 10b-5

115. | Plaintiff Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 through 114 above.

116. As set forth abore, Morano overruled finance staff objections and permitted
Lumenis to recognize revenue in a number of transactions despite significant red flag warnings
that should have prevented such recognition, made materially false and misleading startements in
Fonnle-Q or 10K filed with the Commission in 2002 and 2003 and other public disclosures,
and certified the accuraey of ﬁnencial statements that contained nraterially false and misleading
statements. Morane knew or was reckless in not knowing that these filings and other public
statements were materially false and rnisleading.

117.  As set forth above, Genger parricipated- ina fraudulent scheme to artiﬁcially
inflate Lumenis’ revenue and vfalsif'y Lumenis financial disclosures. Genger’s corrduct directly
resulted in the publication of materially false and misleading Lumenis ﬁnencial statements.

118. By reason of the foregoing, Lurrrerris, Genger and Morano, singly or in concert
with others, directly or indirectly, irr ‘conrlecﬁon with the purchase or salé of securities, by the use

of any means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or any facility of any
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national securities e‘Xchangé-:. (a) employed devices, schemes, dr artifices to defraud; (b) made
untrue statements éf material fact or omitted to state matérial facts necessary in order to make the
statements made, m the 11ght of the circumstaﬁceé under which the‘y‘ were mad_e, not misleadihg;
or (c) engaged in acts, ﬁractic_es or courses bf business which operafed or would operate as a
~ fraud or deceit upoh any perSpns, inciuding purchésers o\r sellérs of Lumenis securities, in
violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act _[15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 [17 C.F.R. §
" 240.10b-5] thereunder. | |

119. The conduct of .Lux.nenis, Geﬁger and Morano involved fraud, gleceit, or deliberate '
or r,eckless disregard of regulatory requirements, and resulted in substantial loss, or signiﬁcanf
risk of substantial loss, to other persons, within the meaning of Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange
Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u(d)(3)]. o | |

| SECOND CLAIM

(All Defendants)
Fraud in the Offer or Sale of Securities in Violation of Securities Act § 17(a)

| 120. Plaintiff Cpmmission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 through 114 above.- |

121.  As deécﬁbed above, Lumenis, Genger and Morano engaged in fraudulent -
activities and a fraudulent scheme resulting in numerous rhaterially false and misleading
stateﬁents in 2002 aﬁd 2003.

122. During 2002 and 2003, Lumenis offered registere(’lvsecuriti'es at the same time its
financial statements filed with the Commission contained materially false or misleading
étatements.

123. By reason of the foregoing, Lumenis, Genger and Morano, directly or indirectly,

acting intentionally, knowingly or recklessly, by use of the means or instruments of
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rtransport‘ation or communication in interstate commerce or by the use of the mails, in the offer
or sale of securities: (a) employed deyice‘s, schemes or artifices to defraud, (b) obtained money or
property by means of untrue statements of material fact or omissions to state material facts
| | necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances under wh1ch
they were made, not mislea‘dmg; or (c) engaged in transactions, prac’uces or courses of business
which operated or would operate as a fraud or deceitvupon certain purchasers, including
purchasers of Lum’enis securities.
THIRD CLAIM |
(Genger and Morano)
Clrcumventlon of Internal Controls and Falsification of Accountlng Records
in Violation of Exchange Act § 13(b)(5) and Rule 13b2-1
124. I;lajntiff Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs .1 through 114 above.
125 By reason of the foregoing, -Genger and Morano knowingly circumvented
Lumenis internal accounting controls; or, directly or indirectly, falsified, or caused to be falsified,
" Lumenis’ books, records and accounts in violation of Section 13(b)(5) of the. Exchange Act [15
U.S.C. § 78m(b)(5)] and Exchange Act Rule 13b2-1 [17 C.F.R. § 240.13b2-1].
| - FOURTH CLAIM |
(Lumenis)

Reporting of False and Misleading Information in Annual Statements
in Violation of Exchange Act § 13(a) and Rules 12b-20 and 13a-1

- 126. Plaintiff Commission repeats and rea_lleges'paragfaph_s 1 through 114 above.
127. Lumenis repoited inaterially false and misleadiﬁg information in its Forms 10-K
ﬁled with the Commission on April 1, 2002 and March 28, 2003. |
128. By reason of the foregoing, »Lumerﬁs violated Section 13(a) of the Exchaﬁge Act

[15U.S.C. §‘78m(a)] and Rules 12b-20 and 13a-1 thereunder [17 C.FR. §§240.12b-20 and
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240.13a-1], and therefore is liable pursuant to Section 20(¢) of the Exchange Act [15U.S.C. §
78t(e)].

FIFTH CLAIM
_ (Lumenis) » ‘
Reporting of False and Misleading Information in Quarterly Reports
‘in Violation of Exchange Act § 13(a) and Rules 12b-20 and 13a-13

129. Plaintiff Cominission repeats and:reélleges paraglfaphs 1 through 114 above.

130. Lﬁmenis reported materially false and misleading iﬁformation in its Forms 10-Q
or Forms 10-Q/A filed vﬁth the Commission on May 15, 2002 (first quarter of 2002), August 15,
2002 (second qﬁarter 0f 2002), November 19, 2002 (two ﬁlings: oné for the second quarter éf
2002 and the other for the third quarter of 2002) and Méy 15,2003 (ﬁrst quarter 0f2003).

131, By reason of the foregoing, Lumenis violated Section 13(;1) of the Exchange Act
[15U.S.C. § 78m(a)] and Rules 12b-20 and 13a-13 thereunder [17CFR. §§ 240.12b-20 and
240.13&13‘],'%(1 therefore is liable pursuant to Section 20(e) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §
78t(e)]. | | |
SIXTH CLAIM
(Lumenis) o

Reporting of False and Misleading Information in Forms 8-K
in Violation of Exchange Act § 13(a) and Rules 12b-20 and 13a-11

132. Plaintiff Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 throﬁgh 114 above.

133.  Lumenis reported materially false and misleading infonnation in its Forms §8-K-
filed with the Commission on August 15, 2002, November 19, 2002, March 28, 2003, April 30,
2003, and May 15, 2003. |

134. By reason of the foregoing, Lumenis violated Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act

[15 U.S.C. § 78m(a)] and Rules 12b-20 and 13a-11 thereunder [17 C.F.R. §§ 240.12b-20 and
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240.13a—-1 1], and therefore is liable pursuant to Section 20(e) of the Exchange Act[15US.C. §
7810)).

SEVENTH CLAIM
_ _ (Lumenis)
Maintenance of False and Misleading Books and Records
in Violation of Exchange Act § 13(b)(2)(A)

135.  Plaintiff Commission repeats and »reallegeé paragraphs 1 through 114 above.

- 136. Lumerﬁs maintained false and misleading books and records, which, among othg_r
things, materially understated the cdmpény’s_ net losses and materially overstated the company’s
revenue. | |

137. By reason éf thé foregoing, Lumenis violated Section 13(b)(2j(A) of the
Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(A)], and therefore is liable pursuant to Section 20(e) éf |
the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78t(e)]‘.

EIGHTH CLAIM
(Lumenis)

Failure to Maintain Internal Controls
in Violation of Exchange Act § 13(b)(2)(B)

| 138. Plaintiff Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 through 114 above.

139. Lumenis failed to devise and maihtajn a syStem of internal accounting controls
sufﬁcient to provide reasonable assurances that the company’s transaétions Were recorded as
ﬁecessary to permit preﬁaratidn of financial statements in conformity with GAAP.

140. Byvreason of the foregoing, Lumenis violated Section 13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange
~Act[15US.C. § 78rﬁ(b)(2)(B)], and therefore is .liable pursuant to Section 20(e) of the Exchange

Act [15 U.S.C. § 78t(e)].
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'NINTH CLAIM
(Genger and Morano)
, Aiding and Abetting Lumenis’ Reporting
of False and Misleading Information in Annual Statements in Violation of
Exchange Act § 13(a) and Rules 12b-20 and 13a-1

. 141. Plaintiff Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 through 11.4 above.

| 142. Lumenis reported matenally false and misleadmg 1nformatron in its Forms 10-K
filed with the Commission on April 1, 2002 and March 28, 2003.

143. : Genger knew, or was reckless in not knowing, that Lumenis’ conduct was
‘improper,'arld knowingly and substantially assisted Lumenis to report materially false and
| misleading information in its Forms 1‘0-K filed with the Commission onvApril 1, 2002 and March
28, 2003.

144. Morano knew, or Was reckless in not knowing, that Lumenis’ conduct was
' ‘improper., and knowingly and substantially assisted Lumenis to report materially false and
misleading information in its Forms 10-K filed with the Commission on March 28, 2003.

145. By reason of the foregoing, Genger arid Morano aided and abetted Lumenis’
violation of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78m(a)] and Rules 12b-20 and 13a-1
thereunder [17 C F.R. §§ 240.12b-20 and 240.13a-1], and therefore are liable pursuant to
Section 20(e) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S. C. § 78t(e)).

- TENTH CLAIM
(Genger and Morano)
Aiding and Abetting Lumenis’ Reporting

of False and Misleading Information in Quarterly Reports in Violation of
Exchange Act § 13(a) and Rules 12b-20 and 13a-13

'146.  Plaintiff Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 through 114 above.

147. Lumenis reported materially false and misleading information in its Forms 10-Q
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or Forms .1 0-Q/A filed with the Commission on May 15, 2002 (first quarter of 2002); Augtist 15,
2002 (sec;)nd quarter of 2002), November 19, 2002 (two ﬁlings,"one for the sgéond quarter of
2002 and the other for the third quarter of 2002) and May 15, 2003 (first quarter of 2003).

148. Both Genger and 'Mérano knew, oi' were reckless in not knowing, that Lumenis’ ’
cbnduct was improper, and each knowingly and subs_tantially assisted Luménis to report
materially false and misleading inférmation in its Forms 10-Q filed with the Commission on May
15, 2002 (first quarter of 2002), August 15, 2602 (second quarter of 2002), November 19, 2002
- (two ﬁlings, oné for the second quarter of 2002 and the cher fér the third quaﬁer of 2002) and -
':May 15, 2003 (first quarter of 2063). | | '
| 149. By'féason of the foregéing, both Genger and Morano aided and abetted Lumenis’
violation of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78m(a)] and Rules 12b-20 and 13a-

13 thereunder [17 C.F.R. §§ 240.12b-20 and 240.13a—13], and therefore are liable pursuant to
Section 20(&) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78t(e)].
ELEVENTH CLAIM
- (Genger and Morano) -
Aiding and Abetting Lumenis’ Reporting
_of False and Misleading Information in Forms 8-K .
in Violation of Exchange Act § 13(a) and Rules 12b-20 and 13a-11

150. Plaintiff Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 through 114 above.

151. Lumenis reported materially false and misleading information in its Forms 8-K
ﬁled with the Commissioﬁ on August 15, 2002, November 19, 2002, March 28, 2003, April 30,

| 2003, and May 15, 2003.

152. Both Genger and Morano knew, or were reckless in not knowing, that Lumenis’

" conduct was improper, and both knowingly and substantially assisted Lumenis to report
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materially falée aﬁd misleading information in Forms ‘8-K filed w1th the. Commission on August
15,2002, Novembér 19, 2002, March 28, 2003, Aprii 30, 2003, and May 15, 2003.

'153. By reason of the foregoing, both Genger and Mofano aidedra'nd abetted Lumenis’
_ v'iolatioﬁ of éection 13(a) of the Exchange Act [15U.S.C. § 78m(a)] ‘and Rules 12b-20 and 13a-
‘_ 11 thereunder [17 C.F.R. §§ 240.12b-20 and 240.13a-11}, and therefore are liablé pursuant to
'S.ection 20(e) of the Ekchange Act [15U.S.C. § 78t(e)]. | |
o TWELFTH CLAIM
(Genger and Morano)

Aiding and Abetting Lumenis’ Maintenance of False and Misleading Books and Records in
Violation of Exchange Act'§ 13(b)(2)(A)

!

154. Plaintiff Commissibn repeats and realleges paragréphs 1 through 114 above.

'155.  Lumenis maintained false and misleading books and records, which, among other |

things, materially understated the édmpany’s net losses and materially overstated the company’s
revenﬁe.

156. Both Génger and Morano knew, or was reckless in.not knowing, that Lmnenis’
éonduét was impréper, and knowingly and substantially assiéted Lumenis to keep and maintain

false and misleading books a.nd'récords.

157. - By reason of the foregoing, both Genger and M(_)rano aided and abetted Lumenis’

“violations of Section 1'3(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act [15 U.'S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(A)], and therefore
are liable pursuant to Section 20(e) of the Exchange Act [15U.S.C. § 78t(e)].
THIRTEENTH CLAIM
(Genger and Morano)
Aiding and Abetting Lumenis’ Failure to Maintain Internal Controls

in Violation of Exchange Act § 13(b)(2)(B)

158.  Plaintiff Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 through 114 above.
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159. Lumenis failed to devise and maintain a system of internal accounting controls
“sufficient to provide reasonable aséu:rénces that the compan& ’s fransactions were recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP.

160._ Both Genger and Morano knew,. or Was repkless in not knowing, that Lumenis’
conduct was improper, and éaéh knowingly and substantially assisted Lum‘énis’ failuté to devise
and maintain a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurances
that. the comp'any.’s transactions were" recorded as nécessary td pemﬁt preparation of financial
statements in conformity with GAAP.

| 161. By reason of thé foregoing, ‘both’Genger and Moraho aided and abetted Lumenis’
Vviolations of Section 13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act [1-5'U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(B)], and therefore
is liable puréuant to .Section' 20(e) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78.t(e)]. |
| FOURTEENTH CLAIM
_ (Genger and Morano)
Violations of Exchange Act Rule 13b2-2

162. Plainfiff Commissidn repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 through 114 above.

163. Both Génger and Morano were officers of Lumenis who, directly or indirectly,
‘made or caused to be made matefiélly false or nlisléading statements to an accountant in
connection with,jor omitted to state, or caused another person to omit to state, any material fact
necessafy in order to mai(é s£atements rﬁade, in l_ight of the circumstaﬁces under which Sﬁch
statements were made, not misIeading, to an accountant in connection with an audit, review or
examination of the financial statements of Lmﬁenis required to be made pursuant to the
Exchange Act‘ or the preparation or filing of any document or report required to be filed with the

‘Commission pursuant to the Exchange Act or otherwise.
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164. By reason of the foregoing, Genger and Morano viblated Exchange Act Rule
13b2-2 [17 C.F.R. §§240.13b2-2], and therefore are liable pursuant to Section 20(e) of the
- Exchénge Act[15 USC.§ 78t(e)]. |
FIFTEENTH CLAIM
(Morano) _
Violations qf Exchange Act Rule 13a-14

165. Plaintiff Commission repeaté and realleges paragraphs 1 through 114 above.

166. Morano certified the accuracy of Lumenis; Forms 10-Q or 10-Q/A filed with the
Commission on Novembcr 19, 2002 (two filings, one for the se.cond 0f 2002 an.d. one for the th1rd
quarters of 2002), and May 15, 2003 (first quarter of 2003) and the'Férm 10-K filed with the
Corﬁmission on March 28, 2003 (fiscal year 2002). |

167.  The above-mentioned forms filed with the Commission contained materially false
-and misleading statements. |

168. Morano knew, 6r was reckless in not knowing, that the forms filed With the
Corﬁmission that he was certifying contained materially false orl misleading statements.

169. By reason of the foregoing, Morano violated Exchange Act Rule 13a-14 [17
CFR. §§ 240.13#—14], and therefore is liable pursuani to Section 20(e) of the Exchange Act [15
US.C. § 78(e)]. - | | | |

SIXTEENTH CLAIM

(Morano)
(Aiding and Abetting Lumenis’ Violations of Section 10(b)

of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5)

170.' Plaintiff Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 through 114 above.

171. Asset forth above, defendant Lumenis violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act
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| [15US.C. § 7r8j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5] thereunder.

172. As set forth above, defendanf Morano knew, or was recldess in not lrmowingv, that
Lu:mehis5 conduct was improper and he kﬁoWingly and substantiélly éssisted meenjs’ violations
of Section 10(b)>0f the Exchénge Act [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 [17 C.F.R. '§.240.10b-
5] thereunder_._ |

- 173. By reason of the foregoing,- Mofano aided and abetted Lurﬁénis’ violations of |
: Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b¢5]‘
: thereunder, and therefore is liable pursuant to Section 20(e) of the Exchange Act [15 US.C. §
78t(e)]. |
PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Com_missioh respectfully requests that this Court issue a Final
Judgmeht:
, : )
Permanently enjoining Lumenis from violating, directly or indirectly:
a.. Section 17(a) of the Securities Act [15U.8.C. § 77q(a)];

b. Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S. C § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 [17
C.F.R. § 240.10b-5] thereunder;

c. - Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 78m(a)] and Rules 12b-20, 13a-
1, 13a-11, and 13a-13 thereunder [17 C.F.R. §§ 240.12b-20, 240.13a-1, 240.13a-
11, and 240.13a-13; and

d. Sections 13(b)(2)(A) and 13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act[15U.S.C. §§
78m(b)(2)(A) and 78m(b)(2)(B)].
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CIL
Permanently enjoining Genger from violating, directly or indirectly:
- a. Section 1'7(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)]' |

b. Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 [17
- C.F.R. § 240.10b-5] thereunder;

c.  Section 13(b)(5) of the Exchange Act.[15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(5)] and Rules 13b2-1 |
and 13b2-2 thereunder [17 C.F.R. §§ 240.13b2-1 and 240.13b2-2]; '

d.  Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 78m(a)] and Rules 12b-20, 13a-
1, 13a-11, and 13a-13 thereunder [17 C.F.R. §§ 240.12b-20, 240.13a-1, 240.13a-
11, and 240. 13a—13]' and . ’

e. | Sections 13(b)(2)(A) and 13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§
 78m(b)(2)(A) and 78m(b)(2)(B)].

- 1L
~ Permanently enjoining Morano from violating, direcﬂy or indirectly:
a. Section 17(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)];

b. Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 [17
C.F.R. § 240.10b-5] thereunder; /

- C. Seetion 1'3(b)(5) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(5)] and Rules 13b2-1
' and 13b2-2 thereunder [17 C.F.R. §§ 240.13b2-1 and 240.13b2-2];

d. ~Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 78m(a)] and Rules 12b- 20, 13a-
' 1, 13a-11, 13a-13 and 13a-14 thereunder [17 C.F.R. §§240.12b-20, 240. 13a—1
240 13a-11, 240.13a-13, and 240.13a-14]; and

e. Sections 13(b)(2)(A) and 13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act[15U.S.C. §§
78m(b)(2)(A) and 78m(b)(2)(B)}-

Iv.
Permanently prohibiting Genger and Morano from acting as an officer or director of any

issuer that has a class of securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act [15
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U.S.C. § 781] or that is_'réquired to file reports pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Exchange Actv[15

US.C. § 780(d)].

V.

Reqmnng Genger and Morano to pay civil money penalties pursuant to Section 21(d)(3)

of the Exchange Act [15U.S.C. § 78u(d)(3)] in an amount to be determined by the Court.

VL.

Ordering such other and further relief as this case may require under equity and the Court

- deems appropriate.

JURY DEMAND

The Commission hereby demands a trial by jury on all claims so triable.

Dated: April 26, 2006

Respectfully submitted,

=PI I

David P. Bergers
District Administrator

R. Daniel O’Connor (RO5217)
District Trial Counsel
oconnord@sec.gov

Timothy B. Henseler (TH2748)
Senior Enforcement Counsel
henselert@sec.gov

Attorneys for Plaintiff

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
33 Arch Street, 23" Floor

Boston, MA 02110

(617) 573-8979

(617) 424-5940 fax
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